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hatbir @ Rita Ssociates LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

TO THEMEMBERS OF
XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accom panying IND AS financial statements of M/s XICON
[nternational Limited ("the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss [including Other Comprehensive Income) and the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other e:r.plnnatcm] information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required l:n.; the Actin
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31,2024, and its profit and its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Fthics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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overseas parties agdregating to Rsl53
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oulstanding for recovery/ payment for a period more than 3 years as at 31/ 03,2024

These amounts have remained ou

Exchange Management Act (FEMA /
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stipulated under Foreign

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters,

KEY AUDITMATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
significance in our audit of the IND AS financial st

matters were addressed in the context
and in forming our opinion thereon,
matters.

Welave determined the matters described below as to

communicated in our report,

professional judgment, were of most
atements of the current period. These

of our audit of the financial statements as a whale,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

the key audit matters to be

Revenue Recognition under IND AS 115.
Revenue from Contract with customers :
Fixed Price contracts

How our audit assessed by the key matter

The Company inter alia engage in Fixed-
price contracts, wherein, revenue is
recognised using the percentage of
Completion computed as per the input
Method based on the Company's estimate of
contract costs (Refer Note Ah) to the
standalone financial statemenis}

We identified revenue recognition of fixed
price contracts as a Key Audit Matiter since:
a. Itpertains to the major activity of the
company and the recognition of the
revenue depends on third party
certification based on the invoices
raised, and approved based on the
survey,
Application of this standard is
complex and it involve number of key
judgements and estimates mainly in
indentifying performance obligation
and recognition of revenue based on
the stage of completion of the
contract on certified invoices.

Our audit procedure on revenue recognized
From fixed price contracts includes:

. Obtained an unrlerstundlhg of the system
processes and controls implemented by
company for recording and computing
revenue,

® Withregards to information technology:

* Assessed the IT environment which the
Business system operates in and tested
the system controls ever which the
revenue is recognized.

* Tested IT controls over appropriateness of
cost and revenue reports generated by
the system.

Tested controls pertaining to allocation

of resources and budgeting systems which
prevent unauthorized recording or changes|
to costs incurred and controls relating to
the estimation of contract costs required to
complete the respective projects.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S
REPORT THEREON

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report but does
not include the financial statements and ouy auditor’s report thereon,

In connection with our audit of the {inancial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated

I, based on the work we have perdormed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 1534(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Ind AS financial statements that dive a true and fair view of the financial position,
linancial performance incl uding Other Comprehensive Income cash flows and changes in
Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles denerally accepted
in India includi ng the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frand or ervor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Cnm}::mu]‘s abilitq to continue as a doing concern, disr:]osing. as applica.b.]e, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high

these Ind AS financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 1435(3)i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the foing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant deubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Cc:mpa ny to cease to continue asa Aoing concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosu res, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,
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Ma‘r,en'ﬂ]ihj is the magnitude of misstatement in Financial Statement that, inc]jviduaﬂq or
In aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonahly
knowledgeable user of the Financial Statement may be influence. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in | Planning the scope of our Audit work
and in evaluating the result of our work and II. To evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatement in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and signiticant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal contro] that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related saleguards. From the matters communicated
with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to ou tweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
L As required l‘:u the Cc:mpailies {ﬂuc{itnfs Repcrt,]' Orcler. 2020 ("the Drder"_}.

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the CﬂmpﬂniES Jﬂici, "2‘013, we dive in the Annexure A statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company sofar as it appears from ouy examination of those books,

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other
Comprehensive Income and the Cash Flow Statement and Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies Lﬁ.ccuunis}ﬂu]ea. 2014 including Ind AS;
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e) On the basis of the writteu representations received trom the directors as on
March 31, 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure B

8l With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations Siven tous:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements,

i)  The Company has did not have any long—term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses,

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transterred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

(iv)  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds o share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities {'Tntermecfiari@s"], with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever [ Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficfarie&

(b) The Management has represented that, to the hest of its
knowledge and belief no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
f“Fundina Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behall of the
Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures perdormed that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the cireumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i1) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material mis-statement.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration paid or provided for by
the company c]u:ring the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section

lg?'ﬂ'ﬁ} of the Act.

i) The company, in respect of financial year commencing on or after the Ist April,
2023, has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same Las
been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software
and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail has
been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for vecord
retention,

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATFSLLP
Chartered Accountan ts

Firm's Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir § Eagasruwala

Partner

Memb@rship No. 030865

UDIN: 24039865BKDHHL 5084
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Duie:.ﬁ'ﬂ;” ﬂﬁ/’ 2024
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"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2024, we report the following;

1} &) (A)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Pmpeﬂg, Plant and Ec;uipmenf;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets,

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management annually, which our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, the
Property, Plant and Equipment has not been physically verified by the

management during the year and no material discrepancies between the books
records and the Property, Plant and Equipment have been noticed

(e} According to the information and explanations given to‘us, the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the Lease deeds & Title
building that have been taken on lease and otherwise and disclosed as
Property, Plant & Equipment in financial statements, the lease agreement &
title deed are in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations diven to us, the records
examined by us, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipmeut {includinﬁ Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both durin,ﬁ

the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records
examined 1::1; us no prm@edinas have been initiated or are pendi ng against the

company for holding any Benami property under the "Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made theren nder.

2 (a) Aﬁcurdina to the information and explanations given to us the inventory has
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. [n our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the
information and explanations diven to us and as examined by us, no material
diserepancies of 10% or more in the agdregate for each class of inventory was
noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to
book records on such verification.

Unit No. 209/210, IMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti Mall, Malad (W), Mumbai - 400 064.
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(b) According to the information and explanations diven to us and the records
examined by us, the Company has not beey sanctloned working capital limits
in excess of Rs,f)cm:es. in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the company except minor variance

as stated below:

St.no | Particulars | As per | As  per | Difference | Reason
Books Bank
1 Stock 120478 1204.78 0.00 Not Applicable
s Debtors 125795 134615 (88.20) Refer Note no 1 (a
b& e
3 Creditors 23765 24176 (4.11) Re{nf-r Note no 1 (d
I - F'e

Note No 1: The variance in Debtors & Creditors as per submitted stock statement
to the bank is due to the following reasons:
a. Provision for ECL of Rs 8761 Lakhs in the Books,
b. Bad Debts— Balance Written off in books of Rs 003 Lakhs
c. Works Contract TMIGST} of Rs 056 Lakhs
d. Debit Note cancelled of Rs 244 Lakhs
e. Sundry Creditors Written Back of Rs167 Lakhs
f. Note No10 - Trade Payables includes Creditors for Expenses, Contractors,

Sunncontrﬂctars. Professional, Consu mables, Rent, Transporters & Others

According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined
by us the company has not made investments in nor provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, {irms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties cavered in the register required under
section 180 of the Companies Act. 2013, Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to () of
the order is not applicable,

According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined
by us the company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or
provided any guarantee or security as specified under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) and the company has not provided any security
as specified under section 186 of the Act. Further in our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 183 and I86 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans,

investments, suarantees, and securi ty.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
the records examined by us, the company has not accepted any deposits or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public and accordingly
paragraph 3 (v) of the order is not applicalle,

In our opinion and nc::{:rclin,ﬁ to the information and explanations given to us and
the records examined by us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been

specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company,




Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been denerally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Emplnqees State Insurance, Inmm@-—T.:Lx, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duh; of Customs,
Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities, ﬁccon:]ing to the information and explanations Alven to

us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at
March 31, 2024 for & period of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable.

(b) Acr:errling to the information and explanations diven to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for o
period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
the records examined by us, there are no such transactions which are not recorded

in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments un der the Income Tax Act, 1061,

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and the records examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment
of loans or other borrowings in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The company is not declared wilful defaulter ]:n.; any bank or financial

institution or other lender,

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and the records examined by us the company has applied the term loans for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and the records examined }Jg us, no funds raised on short term basis have been
utilised for long term purposes.

le) In our opinion and amc:rding to the information and explanations given to us
and the records examined by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures,

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and the records examined by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies.
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10) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and
explanations given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by
way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and
term Loans, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made
private placement of shares o debenture during the year and hence compliance
with the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013

does not arise.

1) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, we report that no frand by the
Com pany or on the company has been noticed or reported du ring the year.

(L) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, no report under sub-Section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 a5
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the
Central Government,

(c) ﬁ:cmding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, no whistle-blower complaints has
been received during the year by the Company. Accordi ngly, paragraph 3 (xi)(c)
of the order is not applicable,

12) ﬁcv:c:rding to the information and explanations &iven to us, the C:nmpang isnota
Nidhi Company and accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not applicable to
the Com pany,

13) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act Where applicable, the
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards,

14)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The Company being Unlisted Public Company does not require mandatorily to
appoint Internal Auditors for the period under audit as per rule 13 of companies
{e"’mcmmtsl Rules 2014, Acmrdinalq, paragraph 3 (xiv) (b) of the order is not
applicable to the Compan y.
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15) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non.
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable,

16) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company is not required to be

registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1034,

(b) Aecording to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without avalid Certificate
of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
India Act1034

fc}ﬁccnrding to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the Company, the Company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve
Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has no CIC as part of the
Group

I7)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company. the Company has not incurred cash
losses in the Financial Yearand in the immediately preceding financial year,

18) ﬂcmrding to the information and explanations diven to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, there has not been any resignation of
the statutory anditors during the year, Accordi ngly, clause 3(xviii) of the Crder is
not applicable,

19) Aﬂmrdin.a to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the
auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither 8lve any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the halance sheet date, will
et discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,
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20) ACCG-I’EI]H& to the information and explanations 8iven to us and based on ocur
examination of the records of the company, section 130 of the Companies Act is not
applicable to the company, accordingly reporting under clause (xx) of the order is
not applicable.

21} According to the information and explanations diven to us and based on cur
examination of the records of the company, there have been no qualifications or

adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Cc}mpﬂnir-.-s (Auditor's Report)
Order (CARQ) reports of the companies included in the consclidated financial

statements,
For SHABRIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg,:‘s tration 420W

Ell:}l}ir 5 Baﬁasrﬂwala

Pa riner

Membership Na. 030865

UDIN: 24039865BKDHHL5984
Place of Sign&lure: Mumbai

Date: 30,/05,/2024

Unit No. 209/210, IMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti Mall, Malad (W), Mumbai - 400 064.
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ANNEXURE B
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s XICON
International Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSILILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issuecl, ]:n] the Institute of Clmrtered Accounta nts of India, T]J.ESE' responsi]:rﬂities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the saleguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act, 2013,
AUDITORS RESPONS IBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal {inancial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of | nternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financia] reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Unit No. 209/210, LIMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti Mall, Malad (W}, Mumbai - 400 064.
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Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intermal f{inancial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal contro] based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our andit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over{inancial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company'’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

L

2

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accun rately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,

Provide reasonable assurance that tra nsactions are recorded as necessany to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the compa ny's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls &_e_z Ftngciu.[ &mig

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
prajections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future period are subject to the risk that the internal financial contrel over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




Fhabbir @ Rita SHhsociates LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

inion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal con trol
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Ree.istmticn No. 100420W

e

abbir S Bagasrawala
Partner

Mem]:ers]zip No. 030865

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: 30,/05,/2024

UDIN: 24059865BKDHHLH084

Unit No. 209/210, IIMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti Maﬂ.lh{alid (W), Mumbai - i[lﬂ 064.
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)

. As at As at
Particul .
T, ks March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 154.31 165.74
(b} Cther Intangible Assets 4 0.52 0,70
{c) Financlal Assets
(i} Investments 5 3.54 597
(d) Deferred Tax Assets [ 25.76 2247
(F) Other Non-currant Assets 7 70.78 16.57
Total Non-current Assets 254,91 211.45
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 8 1,204.78 645.16
(b} Financial Assets -
(i} Trade receivables 9 1,257.95 2,066.29
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 10 1.26 1.94
(i} Cther bank balances 1t 56.15 104.58
{c) Other Current Assets 12 705.25 578.98
Total Current Assets 3,225.40 3,396,689
TOTAL ASSETS 3,480.30 3,608.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{2 Equity Share capstal 13 309,16 309.16
(b} Other Equity 14 553,49 5D6.02
Total Equity 862.65 B15.18
LIABILITIES
MNon-current Liabilities
(&) Provisions 15 4.29 4,17
Total Mon-current liabilities 4,29 4,17
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 1,228.89 1,024.42
(i} Trade payzbles 17 - -
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 38.71 5.20
Due to Others 736.15 1,335.26
(iii} Other finandizl labiities 13 36.69 78,20
(c) Cther current liabllides 19 S566.61 338.85
() Provisions 20 1.05 1.05
(d) Current Tax Liabilties{Net) 5.26 502
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,613.36 2, 788.97
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,617.65 2,793.15
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,480.30 3,608.33
See accompanying notes 1 to 60 forming part of the
financial statements
In terrms of our repart attached.
For SHABBIR B RITA ASS0 L# LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTA
FIRM'S REG:’WII:W - )
__.-"-'.-.-:'--. R
o}
-~
_:.iI-IA'BBIR S BAGASRAWALA HEMANT K TALAPADATUR SUNIL THITE
PARTHER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN Mo : 02741651 —==DIN Mo, 10181159

gt NaL,

/ MEMBERSHIF MO. 039865

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May 2024

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May 2024
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XICON INTERNATIOMAL LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

AlCOon
I

{Amount in Lakhs)

3 Mote Year ended Year ended
PaEculn Ne. |  Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
INCOME
I | Revenue from Operations 21 2.500.66 1,848.39
II'| Cther Income 22 34.64 153.34
1 Total Income (I+1I) 2,535.30 2,001.74
v LEKFEI‘ISES
(a) Cost of Materials Consumed k] 1,743.02 493,31
(b} Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 24 168.51 98.83
(<) Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress 25 (640.51) {110.63)
(d) Manufacturing costs 26 505.67 77134
(e) Employee Benefits Expense 27 174.11 255.50
(F) Finance Costs pl:] 164.45 111.25
() Deprecation and Amortisation Expensa 3 16.82 20.25
(h) Other Expenses 29 346,55 305.05
Total expenses 2,478,623 1,%44.89
W | Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (ITI-IV) 56.67 56.84
V1| Exceptional Items e .
VII[Profit/ (loss) before tax 56,67 5685
VI Tax expense
{a) Current Tax 19.47 §.51
() Deferred Tax (3.28) 21.53
Prior periad tax adjustments (20.95)
MAT Credit B.B7
Total Tax Expense 4.11 31.04
1% [Profit/{Joss) for the year (A) 52.56 2580
¥ |Other Comprehensive Income a0
A. Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss ;
(i) Remeasuremeant [gain/(koss)] of net defined benefit liability (2.67) 7.38
(i) Effect [gain/{loss)] of measuring equity instruments at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FYTOCT) (2.43) (3.37M
(i} Income tax on above
B. Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss :
(i) Fair Value changes on Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedges
{ii) Income tax on above - {1.04)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (B) 5.10) 2.97
Total Comprehensive Income for the year [(A)+{B) 47.47 0.7
Paid up Equity Share Capital 309.16 309.16
Face Value of Equity Share Capital 10.00 10.00
Eaming Per Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each
Basic (In¥) 1.70 0.B3
Diluted (in %) 1.70 0.83
See accompanying notes 1 to 60 forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached.
For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIA For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAR
FIRM'S REG. NO. 1 W
P _---"__W
..-"'___d-f"'
”@;ﬁmmwnm HEMANT K TALAPADATUR SUNIL THITE
._/' PARTHER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
MEMBERSHIP MO, 0359865 DIN Mo : 02741651 DIN No, 10181159
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity Shane Capital
[Ampunt in Lakhs)
Partsculars Amount
Balamce as a8t April 1, 2023 30416
Add: Changet in Equity Share Capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2024 305.16
Add: Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2024 309.16
B. Other Equity
_ {Amount in Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus Tiems of OCIL
Equity
Particulars Retained General o Taibmmmants F.Tlummnt Total
Earnings Resarve P - u'“"qh oc Benefit Plan
Balance 25 at April 1, 2032 395.95 7001 7.15 (2.2 6,34 47715
Profit for the Perod 15.80 = . 25.80
Fai Waluation ol [rvestment - E g . H
Priar Persd Adjustment . - . 4 . s
Cher Comprebensive Inoame for the vear, Nat of Inome Tax [2.45) 5.45 297
Earligr perod tax 0.00)
Balance as 8t March 31, 2023 43176 70,01 715 (4,69 1180 S06.03
Balance as at April 1, 2023 4Z1LTE Fo.01 A5 {4.68) 11.80 506.0%
Profit for the pariod SL56 = = 52.56
Fair Valuation of Investment a = e - =
Prior Period Adjustmeant a = = - = a
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax {243 {2.67) {5.10%
Earlier pariod tax - -
Balances as at March 31, 2024 474.32 70,01 7.A5 {7.11) 9.13 553,49
In Rerms af our ebol Btached,
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors |
For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP =
CHARTERED ACCOUNTA e "-'\-._ i
FIRM'S REG. NO. &g oy }W
- - A
"'_W i iha, | HEMANT K TALAPADATUR - DIRECTOR
1] e S| DIN Ko : 02741651
5 B 5 BAGASRAWALA Moy Lo
THER bR et A
MEMEERSHIP NO. 039865 e, W ¥ .
"'\-'..,'__“._-1-"'_,-!'
Flace : Mumbai SUNIL THITE- DIRECTOR

Date : J0th May 2024 DIN No. 10181159




XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

Xicon
=

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

year ended
Fist March, 2024

year ended
A1st March, 2023

A, Cash Mow from operating activities
Met Profit befane tax
Ll
Depreciation and amortisation
[nberest income
Inberest in OC]
Difference In Exchange Rate {Net)
Prowtsion for Doubtful Debis
Sundry Balances Wiithen off
(Profit) / loss on sale § wite off of asests
Other Comprehensive Income
Finance cosls
Inberest expense
Het loss on sale of investments

Operating prafit belore working capital changes

3
Adjustrments for (increase) [ decrease in operating assets:
Irvenbaries
Trascle receivables
Short-term lpans and advances
Cither nan-current financlal assets
Cither non-current assets
Leng-berm loans and advances
Dther current assels

Adjustments for increase [ (decrease) in operating liablities:
Trade payables
Other financial kiabilties
Other current; liabiites
Current tax Gabiities
Shiort-teri provisiong
Lig-term provisions
Cash generated from gperations
Tax Paid
Extrapedinany item

et cash flow from | [used in) operating activities (A)

16.82
{6.75)

{B.19)
30,23

0.19
{5.10)

154.45

56.67 55,84

2025
(4.20)

(5.51)

4.0

111.25

191.66 - 121.80

(559.62)
TE7.ED

=

{54.21)

{126.13)

248.33 17E.64

(567.30)
{41.57)
227.76

{8.06)
.01
0.12

[328.98)
[277.57)

2452
(8.75)

47.85 (135.51) (T26.40)

7L11
1969

189,63

{15.41)
{6.51)
(1.24)

(389.05) 257.26

{92.87) [2960.45)

(92.87) (290,49)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Furchasse of Froperty, Plant & Equipment
{Purchase)'withdrawal of Fioed Deposits

Interest received

Fair Vialuation of Investmernt

Net cash flow from | (used in) investing activities (B)

(5.43)

48,43
6.75
243
0.00

(7.97)
{72565
420
(336}
{01}

52.18 (75.79)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from Issue of Shames

Procesds from borrowings

Interest expense

Met cash flow from [ (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase | (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash aril cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effect of mechange differences on resiabement of foreign curency Cash snd cash equisalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

04.47
{164.45)

SE0.04
{111.25)

40.02 34882

(0.67)
1.594

(14.75)
16.68

1.94

NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH-2024
L.Cash and Cash Equivalents include :

Cash on Hand

Balance with Bank in Cash Credit Accourt

0,01
1,35

0.7

1.26 1.94

In barms of our report attachead.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCLA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS-
FIRM'S REG. Hﬂ:__

BBEIR 5 BAGASFAWALA
PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP WO, DF5855

o Qo

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors

HEMANT K TALAPADATUR
DIRECTOR
DIN Mo @ 02741651

SUNIL THITE
DIRECTOR
DIN Mo. 10181159




2.1

2.2

4.3

XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Xicon International Limited ("the Company™) is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its
registered office in 283-287, F wing, Solaris - 1, Saki vihar road, Andherl (East) Mumbai - 400 072. The company is engaged
in the business of providing products and services to infrastructure projects in the field of electric heat tracing and turnkey
mechanical and electrical projects for caplive power plants and oil based industries. It covers Balance Plant Equipment for
DG sets. It also carries out thermal insulation works and executes electrical distribution jobs.

The Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 are approved for issue by the Company Board of Directors on
30th May 2024

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of financial statements:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the histarical
cost convention on the accrual basis and on the basis of accounting principle of a gaing concern in accordance with generally
accepied accounting principles (GAAP) except for certain instruments which are measured at fair values,

The Ind AS are presented under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendments Rules issued thereafter,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting palicy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are stated in Rs. Lakhs or decimal thereof, except
when ctherwise indicated, Wherever the amount represents *0° (zerc), value construes less than Rupess five hundred,

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates ("the functional currency™). Indian rupes is the functional currency of the
Company.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity of Ind AS requires managemeant to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabllities, the disclosures
of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements, income and expenses during the periad.
Actial results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaoing basis.
Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognized in the period In which the estimates are revised and in future periods which
are affected.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption having the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are:

Valuation of financial instruments

Usaful life of property, plant and equipment
Actuarial gain/loss on employes benefit plans
Provisions

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current dlassification in accordance
with Division IT of Schedule III of The Companies Act, 2013, An asset |5 treated as current when it is:

- Expectad to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating oycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

- Cash or cash equivalznt unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve manths after
the reporting period,

All ather assets are dassified as non-current.

A liability s current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cyce

It Is due o be settled within twelve months after the reporting perlod, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlernent of the lizbility for at least twelve moenths after the reporting g@rlqd

E = b H..-d'."-'"‘:h._._\.
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading Ay ki
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All other liabilities are dassified as non-current.

Deferred tax ascets and liabilities are clazsified as non-current assets and liabilitiec.

The operating cycle is the time betwesn the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating oycle.

2.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market partidipants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction

to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a prindpal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The prindipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or ability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's abdity to generate economic
benefits by using the asset In Its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would wse the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the droumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value i measured or disclosed in the finandal statements are categorized within the

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation tachnigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recuming basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hisrarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the polides and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
dervative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as
assets held for distribution in discontinued operatians.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to
be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents,

The Management also compares the chamge in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to
determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or llability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if any.
Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress cost indude expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset, The cost of self-constructed assets indudes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs
directty attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality
of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
{major compaonents) of property, plant and equipment,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified
a5 capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed
under "Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized anly when
it Is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Subssauent Cost

The cost of replacing part of an tem of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if It Is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied with these will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured
refiably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognized and charged to the statement of Profit and Loss. All other
costs are recognized in the Staterment of Prafit and Loss as and when incurred,

Depreciation:
Deprediation on property plant & equipments is calculated on Written Down Value method over the useful life as specified by
Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
vear end and adiusted orosoectively, if aoorooriate,

Derecognition of assets

An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognized Is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

2.6 Intanaible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated
amaortisation and accumulated impairment lesses. Cost includes expenditure that s directly attributable to the acquisition of
the intangible asset,

Subseauent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure s capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the spedific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in
profit or koss as incurred,

Intangible assets being computer software is amortized over a period of three years for which the company expect the
benefits to accrue.

Derecognition of assets

An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognized i derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
induded in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

2.7 Revenue recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customer Is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from cantracts with Customers" provides a control-based revenus recognition model and provides a
five step application approzach to be followed for revenue recognition.

A) Identify the contract(s) with customer:

B} Identify the performance obligations;

C) Determine the transaction price;

D) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations:

E} Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.

Revenue from operations
Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of indirect taxes,

Erection and commissioning, Claims including escalation charges and Contractual liquidated damages

Revenue on erection and commissioning of contracts is recognised on the ‘Percentage of completion method'. Claims
including escalation are recognised as revenue on client's acceptance or evidence of acceptance. Contractual liquidated
damages payable for delays in completion of contract work or for other causes are accounted for at costs when deducted,
andfor when such delays and causss are attributable to the Company.

2.8 Other income:
Other Income is comprised primarily of interest income on fixed deposit and rent income. Interest income is recognized using
the effective Interest method. Rental income arising from operating lease on investment property is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the l2asa term..

Inventories:

Inventories comprise all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to thel
location and conditicn,
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Raw materials valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the basis of the weighted average
method.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials,
labour, other direct cost and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Met realisable value is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.10 Retirement benefits:
Employes benefits include Provident Fund, , Employes State Insurance Scheme, Gratuity Fund and Compensated Absences.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company contributes on a defined contribution basis to Employes’s Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance
Scheme, towards post employment benefits, which Is administered by the respective Government authorities, and has no
further obligation beyond making its contribution, which is expensed in the year to which it pertains.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employees in the form of Group Gratuity -cum- Life
Assurance Schems. The liability for the defined benefit is determined on the basis of valuation made under the scheme at
year end, which is calculated using the projected unit credit method.

Gains and losses through remeasurement of the defined benefits obligations is reflected in the balance shest with a charge
or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur, Remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and
loss. For Defined Benefit Plans in the form of Gratuity Fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit methad, with actuarial valuations being carrled out at each balance sheet date.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as a related service
provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount a5 & result of past service provided by the
employes and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Leave encashment

The employvees of the Company are entitied to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liability in respect of
unutilized leave balances is determined wsing the Projected Unit Credit methed, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
each balance shaet date,

Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Socal Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the
company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity, The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code
on Soclal Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active
consideration by the Ministry, The Company and its Indian subsidiaries will assess the impact and its evaluation once the
subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its finandal statements in the period in which, the Code
becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

211 Accounting for taxes on income;

Income tax expensa comprisas current and deferred tax, Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,

a Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reperting period in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognized outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates position taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulaticns are subjected to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate,

b Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences bebween the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
lomger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availzble to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be wtjli
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent th
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the assct realized, bosed on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the
balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax llabilities and assets reflects the tax conseguences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same @xation authority and the Company intends to
settle its current kax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

c The Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the Minimum
Alternative Tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations
contained in guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit
to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance
sheet date and writes down the camrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

212 Lease:
As a lesseea:
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a
lease reqguires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renawals) and the applicable discount rate.
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if the Company s reasonably certain to exerdise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option, In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if thera is a change in the
non-cancellable period of a lease.
The discount rate is generally based on the borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases
with similar characteristics,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU™) and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and low value leases, For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

As a lessor:

The Company has leased certain tangible assets, and such leases, where the Company has substantially retained all the risks
and rewards of ownership, are classified as operating leases. Lease income is recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease receipts to the lessor are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for lessors expected inflationary costs increases, in which case the same are
recognised as an income in line with the contractual terms.

2.13 Impairment of assets:

Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or boss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit osses are measured at an amount equal to
the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
mizasured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at
the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the
Statement of profit or loss,
Mon-financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable
amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of dispesal and its value in use,
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset doss not generate cash Inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets.
If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is
measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimaked recoverable amount of the asset.

A.SE' An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been 2 change in the estimates used to

hﬂﬂh ﬂq, determing the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable
- ¢ provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any ac
37 2
0

ortization or depredation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
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2.14 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingant assats

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an cutflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to sette the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized a5 a separate assst, but only when
the reimbursement is virtwally certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net
of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when

appropriate, the risks spedfic to the Hability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as a finance cost,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
oCourrence or non-occumence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent lisbility also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, The contingent liability is not recognized in books of account but its existence is
disclosed in financial statements.

A contingent assets, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief description of the
nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their finandal
effect, measured using the principles st out for provisions in Ind AS 10,

2.15 Financial Instruments
Financial assets
Financial assets are recognisad when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,
On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases,
the transaction ¢ost are attributed to the acguisition value of the finandal asset.
Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at
Financial Assots
Amortized cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate CEIR') method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FYOCI, is
classified as FVTPL, Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes  in fair value, induding interest income
and dividend income if any, recognized as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FWOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model
whose chjective is achieved by both, sslling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movemants
are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment
losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Trade Recelvables and Loans:

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amertized cost, using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses, The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future
cash income through the expected life of financal instrument,

Equity Instruments

All imvestments in equity instruments dlassified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value , the Company may,
on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FYOCT or FYTPL,

The Company makes such election an an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair valuz changes on an equity instrument is
recognised as other income in the Staterment of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument
at AVOCL Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FYOCI are recognised in OCI.
Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the
investments in equity instruments are recognised as “other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

,/g:ne,i\\.

( i I':!Bﬂl




A1C0IN

Financial liabilities

Inltlal recognition and measurement

Financial lizbilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they are dassified as fair valus
through profit and loss. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of borrowings trade
payables and other financial liabilities, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities indude
borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Financial lisbilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair valua with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(a) Borrowings: Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the pericd of the borrowings using the EIR
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan fadilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
is probable that some or all of the fadlity will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down ocours.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the fadility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
a5 a prepayment for liguidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

{b) Trade and Other Payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as cument liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 maonths after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation spedfied in the contract is discharged, cancelied or expires.

A fimancial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires, When an
existing finandal liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognition of the cdginal
liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and finandal liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there i an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the
assats and settle the liabilities simultaneausly.

2.16 Investments in Associates
The Company accounts for its investments in associates at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

2.17 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less acoumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On
dispasal of investments In subsidiaries, the difference betwesn net disposal proceeds and carmying amounts are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss,

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eqguivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, as they are considerad an integral part of the Company's cash management.

2.19 Foreign currency
Functional currency
The functional currency of the company is the Indian rupee. These finandal statements are presented in Indian rupees and
all values are rounded to the Rupee in lacs, unless otherwise stated.

Transactions and translations
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of such transactions. Monetary
assets and labilities as at the Balance Shest date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the
Balance Shest. Gains and losses arising on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on settlernent/translation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at
the date of the transaction,

Effective April 1 , 2018 the company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advanca
Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance consideration | ign
currency. The effect on account of adoption of this amendment was insignificant,
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2.20 Earnings per shaie
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of eguity
shares oubstanding during the year including potential equity shares, if any.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expenss or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the welghted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2,21 Segment Reporting:
Based on "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decsion Maker
evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by
business segments,

Segment Policies:
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Company as & whole, Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on
an appropriate basis,

2.22 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial pericd of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period i which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the bormowing of funds.,

2.23 Recent pronouncements
On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule I1I of the Companies
Act, 2013, The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule Il and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key
amendments relating to Division IT which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

» Lease liabilities should be separately disdosed under the head ‘finandal liabilities”, duly distinguished as current or non-
current.

= Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes In equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior
period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

« Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

» Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible assat
under development.

« If a company has not used funds for the specfic purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions,
then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

» Specific disclosure under “additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements,
compliance with number of layers of companies, tile deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and
advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc,

Statement of profit and loss:
» Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclased income and erypto or virtual currency
specified under the head *additional infarmation” in the notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

5 MNon-current Investments

A1C0N
T —

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Investments measured at fare value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Unquoted
Investments in Equity Shares

1,17,000 (Previous Years 1,17,000 ) Equity Shares of Heat Trace

Micon Limited of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up* 3.54 597
Total 3.54 5.97
| Aggregate Amount Of Quoted Investments =

| Aggregate Amount Of Unguoted Investments 3.54 5.97

*Fair value has been estimated by the management basad on the unaudited financial statements of the investes

company.

6 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Al o
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Asset on Account of :
Disallowance Expenses
Provision for Leave Encashment 1.49 1.36
Prowvision for Ex-Gratia 0.59 =
Provision for MSME 1.94 =
Estimated Credit Loss 24.37 15.73
Current Year Loss - 8.00
Total (A) 28,39 25.09
Deferred Tax Liability on Account of ;
Provision for Gratuity - 0.47
Depreciation = 2.63 2.15
Total (B) 2.63 2.62 |
[ Deferred Tax Assets / (Liability) [Net] : (A)-(B) 25.76 2247

7 Other Non-current Assets

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(Unsacured considered good unless stated otherwise)

Capital Advances 20.95 15.00

Prepaid Expenses 1.70 1.57

Om Margin Money Accounts®

With Maturity More than 12 Months from Balance Sheet Date 48.12 -
Total 70.78 16.57

*Fixed deposits are wnder lien with banks towards working capital facilities

8 Inventories

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

At lower of cost or Net Realisable Value
Raw Materials

Work-in-progress

Stock in trade (Trading)

281.87
879.77

43.14




fa
In
o
5

XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

9 Trade Receivables

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars
i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured
Considered good 1,257.95 2,066,249
Considered Doubtful (Refer Mote 29 With*) B7.61 57.39

1,345.56 2,123.62
Less :- Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 87.61 57.39
Total 1,257.95 2,066.24

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
based on a provision matrix, The provision matrix takes Into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for

forward-looking infarmation.

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

A. Cash on hand

0.01 0.70

B. Balances with Banks = =
Current Accounts 1.25 1.24
Total 1.26 i.94

11 Other bank balances

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

On Margin Money Accounts

1 . 56.15 104,58
With Maturity within 12 Months from Balance Sheet Date
Total 56.15 104.58

*Fived deposits are under lien with banks towards working capital facilities




XICON INTERMATIONAL LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
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12 oOther Current Assets

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars A N
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured Considered Goods
Advance to Suppliers 223.77 163.83
Advance to St 0.89 1.45
Other Advance 4.78 1.83
Balances with Government Authorities 253.43 302,66
Prepaid Expenses 11.69 18,48
Prepaid Gratulty 0.97 1.81
Unbilled Revenue 171.90 65.B6
Security Deposit 30.23 15.34
Oithers Receivable 7.60 7.51
Total 705.25 578.98
*Flxed deposits are under Ben with banks towards warking capital facilities
13 Equity Share Capital

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars g by
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised
B0, 00,000 (Previous Years 60,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/-
each GO0.00 B600.00
Total Authorised share Capital G00.00 60000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
30,91,586 (Previous Years 30,91,585) Equity Shares of Rs.10y-
sach 309.16 304.16
Total Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital 309.16 309.16
2. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding :- (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Amount Ma. of Shares Amount

Shares al the beginning 3,091,586 300.16 3,091,586 309,16
Add: Share warrants issved during the year - = 2 -
Add : Calls in arrears received during the year = = -
Shares at the end 3,001,586 309.16 3,091,586 309,16

. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of Equity Shares having Par Value of Rs.10/- per Share. Each holder of the Equity is entitled o one vete per share, In the event of
the liguidzation of the company , the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining asset of the company, which will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders,

.|Out of the Equity shares issued by the company shares

As at 31st March, 2023
ket b Bk lifiaics et As at 31st March, 2024 h,
No. %0 of holdings Mo. % of holdings
Kaiser Corporation Limited ;1708000 Equity Shares of Rs.104- 4 =
each fully paid up 1,708,000 55,25 1,708,000 55.25

.|Details of share holders holding more than 5% shares

in the company

As at 31st March, 2024

A5 2t 315t March, 2023

Equity Shares of Rs,10/- sach fully paid up No. % of holdings No. % af holdings

Kalser Corporation Limited 1,708,000 55.25 1,708,000 55.25

Lorance Imestments & Trading Lod, £52,000 27.56 852,000 27.56

| Chcamb Tnvestments Limited, UK 275,000 7.28 225,000 7.28

REPL Global HC Ltd. UAE 291,986 9.45 a1 986 9.45
-ﬁdf @t Neg

Q o | MUMBAl




XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

14 Other Equity

(Amaount in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital Reserve 7.15 715
General Reserve 70.01 70.01
Retained Eamings = =
Retained Earnings through Profit & Loss 474.32 421.76
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax - -
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income (7.11) (4.69)
Remesasurement of Net defined benefit abligations 9.13 11.80
Total 553.49 506.02
15 HNon-current Provisions{Long Term)
(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at

16

1

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Prowvision for employes benefits

Leave Encashment 4.79 417
Total 4,29 4,17
Current Borrowings({Short Term)

{Amount in Lakhs)
a As at As at
ekt March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured
A. Loans Repayable on demand
From Banks

Open Cash Credit * 848.09 705.20

Machinery Loan 4.67 -

MSME Term Loan *** 1.21 24.28
Unsecured - -

Loan From Director 25.00 16.50

Other 349,93 278449
Total 1,228.89 1,.024.42
*Cash credit faclity are secured against:

A} Primary

First and exchusive hypaothecation charge on all existing and future receivables f current assets)/ moveable assets) moveable foed
assats of the Borrower .

B) Collateral

"} First and exclusive charge on immoveable properties being Leasehold land and building situated at Office premises at Gala No 282

to 287 at Solaris - 1, Saki Vihar Road, Opp L& T Gate No 7, Powai owned by Xicon international limited®

"ii) First and exclusive charge on Factory at Plot No D-13, MIDC Murbad, Near Ambe Ferro Metal Processor, Murbad, Taluka Mu

District Thane owned by Xicon inbernational Limited.”

ill) Title search report of the property to be found satisfactory to the Bank.

C) Guarantee

"i} Corporate guarantee/s of Kaiser Corporation and Lorance Investments and Trading Limted,

Cash credit facility & Temparory Ovendraft Fadility (TOL) carries interest at 9.35 M MCLRE +1.35% and repayable on demand

***¥MSME term Loan

Second charge on all existing and future receivables | current assets/ moveable assets) moveable fixed assets of the Borrower |

SME term loan carries interest rate @8% pa and payable in 48 months including moratoriem period of 12 Months)

Xlcon
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Trade Payables

Xlcon
" "

(Amount in Lakhs)

E As at As at
eshasmany March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Pavables

Due ko Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note No 453%) 38.71 5.20
Due to Others 736.15 1,335.26
Total 774.86 1,340.47
Other financial liabilities
(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest Accrued and due on M5SME Creditors 4.99 2.78
Salary Payable 19.13 47.57
Other Payable 12.57 2701
Total 36.69 f8.26

Other Current Liabilities

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars N ek As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other Payables
(i) Statutory Dues 6.20 26.10
(i} Advances from customers 560.41 312.7%5
(iii) Deferred Revenue = .
(iii) Other Payable - -
Total 566.61 338.85
Provisions
(Amount in Lakhs)
2 As at As at
Paktrear March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for emplovee benefits :
Provision for Gratuity - -
Provision for Leave Encashment 1.05 1.05
Total 1.05 1.06




1

XICOMN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Revenue From Operations
{Amount in Lakhs)
T As at As at
s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of Products
- Local 2,232.21 193,69
- Expart - 380.00
Sale of Senvice
= Local 221.31 733.09
- Expoet 7.78 548,10
Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap 1.56 1.53
Dty Draw Back 37.80 79
Total Revenue From Operations 2,500.66 184839
Other Income
(Aot bn | akhs)
As at 5 Bt
mi— March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interast from Bank on Deposk 6.75 ]
Interast From Others 1.17 420
Difference In Exchange Rate (Net) 8.19 44,359
Excess Provision | Sundry Balances Wrilten Back 14.98 1462
Rent Receivesd 240 240
Reversal of Doubiful Debd Frovisian - 8,52
Miscellaneous incoma 1.14 022
Total 34.64 153.34
Cost of materials consumed
{Amount in Lakhs)
i As at A5 at
plzigranbs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Raw Material
Opening Stock of Raw material 3676 144,91
Add: Purchases 1,662.14 711.16
Less: Closing Stock of Raw material {281.87) (362, 76)
Toml Cost of materials consumed 1,743.02 493.31
Purchase of Stock in Trade
[ Amaunt in Lakhs)
: As at [T
SN March 31, 2024 March 31, 2003
Electrical Heat Tracers 168.51 58.83
[Total 168.51 LE.E3
Changes In inventores of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-prograss
(Amount in Lakhs)
" As at AS ak
FESLicuiack Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Stocks at the end
Finished Good
Work-in-progress 879.77 214.82
Stock-in-Trade 43.14 6758
922.91 AE2A40
Less: Stocks at the beginning
Finished Good 2
Work=in-progress 214.82 90,50
Stock-in-Trade 67.58 81,27
282.40 17147
Tatal (640.51) (110.63)

A1C0I
) -




26

27

28

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Xicon
" pm——

Manufacturing Cost
{Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particul
s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Payments to Subcontractors 193.11 405432
Consultancy Charges 2.22 23.85
Conveyance Sibe 5.05 34
Diesel fFuel Charges 0.45 6.74
Inspection Charges 3.24 2.33
Equipment Hire Charges 14.70 54,99
Freight Charqes 45.15 25,12
Insurance 15.08 3.49
Packing Expenses 4.29 3.97
Power Charges 18.69 11.25
Site Office Expeanses 17.16 24.67
Medical Expenses for Labour 0.1% 0.29
Testing Fees 50.23 16.84
Stares and Spares 118.77 7794
Staff Welfare - Site 5.39 4.92
Travelling Expenses 11.95 16.12
TOTAL 505.67 771,34
Employee Benefits Expense
(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 164.55 24206
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 6.73 872
Staff Welfare Expenses 2.83 4.73
Total 174.11 755.50
Finance Costs
{(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest expense on;

Secured loan 099,09 69.21
Unsecurad Loan 5188 17.67
Statutory Delay Payment 1.15 3.25
Other borrowing costs 11.34 21.12
Total 164.45 111.25
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Other Expenses

{Amount in Lakhs)

As at hs at
Pl March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Blectricity Charoes 10.96 11.04
Provision for Doubtful Debts* 30.23 -
Liguidated Damages 29.28 .30
Repairs and maintenance - Buildinas 2.90 8.50
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 2.15 1.96
Rates and taxes 2.17 6.00
Selling expenses 153.94 52.29
Prior Period Experses 0.53 423
Printing & Stationery 6.16 10.26
Freight Outward 13.39 13.72
Sequrity Charges 5.90 549
Travelling and conveyance 20,26 45.63
Payments to auditors (Refer note below ) 0.50 0.50
Legal & Professional Fees 43.29 TRT
Miscellaneous expenses 23.90 &0.10
Tatal 346.55 305.05
Note :
Payment to the auditors comprises
As Auditors - statutory auwdit 0,22 022
For Tax audit 0.20 0.20
For Other Services 0.08 0.08
Total 0.50 0.50
*Break up of Provision for Doubtful Debts
Opening Balance 57.28 155.50
Add ;- Provision Made during the year 30.23 {98.52)
Closing Balance 87.61 57.38

KA1COI
- —

Other Comprehensive Income
{Amount in Lakhs)
Equity instrument Other Ttem of Total

Particulars through other comprehensive
- comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2024
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income r
(i) Rermeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefits obligations {2.43) [2.67) (5.10)
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00 0.00
|Total {2.43) {2.67) {5.10)
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Ikems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments throwgh other comprehensive income (337 7.38 4.01
(i} Remeasurement galn/{loss) of defined benefits cbligations
Less: Incame tax relating to ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.88 (1.92) U-ﬂ
[Tatal [2.49) 5.46 2.97




XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

31 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

AlCon
) —

(Amount in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at
31 March 2024

As at

3lMarch 2023

.|Contingent Liabilities
Dutstanding bank guarantees issued by bankers on
behalf of the company.

Letters of credit

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital acoount and not provided for {net
of advance of Rs, 20,95,314; Previous Year Rs.
15,00,000)

666.35

20.95

473.13

15.00

32 Segmental Information

The Board of Directors of the Company collectively has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. Accordingly, segment
information has been presented for industry dasses. The Company’s has only one reportable business segment of

Infrastructure Projects, Therefore, there is no other significant classes of operating segment.

The geographic information is based on business sources from that geographic region and on individual customer
invoices or in relation to which the revenue is otherwise recognized.

Geographic information

(Amount in Lakhs)

) For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Segment revenue
Within India 2,453.52 916,99
[Cutside India 7.78 928.09
Total 2,461.30 1,845.08
Major customers
The following table gives details in respect of revenue generated from top customer and top 5 customers:
i For the year ended For the year ended
PRIt 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from top customer 1,470.13 630.05
Fevenue from top 5 customers 2,107.72 1,485.89

Two customer accounted fior 64.21%, 16.24% of the revenue for the year ended 31 March 2024 and three customer
accounted for 34.15%, 12.33% & 12.22% for the year ended 31 March 2023. However, none of the other customers
accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.
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Mobes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
33 Trade Payable Ageing schedube for the year ended on 315t Mar 2024
{Amaunl in Lakks)
Qutstanding for following perods from due date of payment
: Less Than One D to bwa Two to Three | More than Three Total
Particulars Yaar Years Yeoars Years
1. HSME 3686 0.53 - 132 »n
2, Others 17651 92.95 149.00 11756 76,15
3. Disputed Dues- MSME . - - :
4. Disputed Dues- Others - . = z
Total : 413.47 93,48 149,00 118.591 TT4.B6
Trade Payable Ageing schedule for the yedr ended on 315t Mar 2023
{Amount in Lakhs)
Outstanding for lulln-vd_ng pu'lu_d: fram due date of payment
Lass Than One One ta bwa Twm to Threz | More than Thres Total
Particuburs Year Wears Years Yoars
1. MEME 4483 237 5.20
2. Dthers TE4.54 411.84 355 134,54 133505
3, Dispurted Dues- MSME B - - .
4. Disputed Dues- Others ] . & .
Tatal : 787,37 414.21 3.95 134.94 1,340.46
34 Trade Recelvable Ageing schedule for the year ended on 315t Mar 2024
{Amount in Lakhs)
Dutstanding for following perieds from due date of payment
[ LEEE THan Gee TUnE o Two Two to Three | Mare Than Thiee
Particulars year year Yoars Years Total
1. Undisputed Trade Recervable considened good 756.85 13953 135.30 136.27 1,257.65
2. Undisputed Trade Recetvable considered Doubtful i . . 3 £
3. Dputed Trade Recefvable considered good . R . . =
4. Dispubed Trade Receivable conskdered Doubtiul
|Refer Detior shoet) i :
Total : TEG.AS 239,53 135.30 126.27 1,257.95
Trade Receivable Ageing schedule for the year ended on 315t Mar 2023
[Amount in Lakhs)
Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
[~ LEaE Than ome | One @6 bwa | Twa to Three | MGre Than THiGs
Particulars year year Years Years Tatal '
1. Undispubed Trade Recetvable corsidered good T16.51 49023 433.50 426,00 206624
2. Undisputed Trade Receivable considered Doubtiul . i . E -
3. Disputed Trade Recehable considened good . s - . =
4. Disputed Trade Recehable consitered Douttfid
fiefer Debbor sheet) i :
Total : T16.51 490.23 433,50 426.00 2,066, 24

35 Fiwed AsSets

&) The coenpany maintsin the Fived agsets register and detads of Physical lecation and guantity are propady maintain by the company,
o) Thex comparyy annual basis ke the physical count of the Fhoed assets and there Is no discrepancy in the report.
C) Thee Immowable property as per fed assets schadule kindly find the disclasuns far e desd inname of the compary.

Sr.Na Bescription of lbem of proparty R ST T 'd":nl:;f:?"“ o
1 Leagshald Land 19.08 Yicon Imtemational Lid.
2 |Diffice Premises 5277 ¥con Imternational Lbd.
3 Buildings 135 &9 Wicon Intemational Lid.

d) Then is na procesding initiabed or pending against the compary Mor halding any urcler the benami trarsaction Act 1983
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Inventory

The inventory record af the company ane properly maintained and quarterly physical count has basan Eken my the management There is no Discrepancy
notice while in books of acoount and inventory report.

Thie company has bosrowing from bank on the basis of securty of stock and trade receivable | Thene is variance in quarterly return filed with the bank and
a5 Budited figure.

Particulars As per Book | As per Bank Difference Reasan
1 [stock 1204.78 1204.78 0.00]
2 |pabtors 1357,95 134615 [88.20)| Refer Note No. 1 (a, b & c)
3 |creditors 137,65 4176 (4.11)| Rafer Nots No. 1 (de & )

Mote Mo, 1 = The varance in Debtors & Creditors as per submitted stock statement to the bank is due to the following reasons :
Mote for Deblors
a. Provision for ECL Rs. 87,61 (Less in Books vakig)
b ‘Wiorks Contract Tax (G5T) - Bs. 0.56
€ Sundry Debbor Balance Wiioff - Rs. 0.03
Mote for Creditors
. Dehit Mote cancelad of Rs. 2.44.
& Sundry Creditor Balang WiBack of Rs, 1,67
£, Hate Mo 19 - Trade Pepable includes Credibors for Cornmisssion, Expenses, Contractors, Sub-contractars, Professional, Consumables, Rent,

Transparters & Cthers.
{Amount in Lakhs)
Harm bz llll e :»;;:;3
Cusrent Ratio 1.13 122
|Diaba- Equity Ratio 1.42 1.2
Dabt Service coverage ratio 0.05 .07
Irvenkory barmaver ratio 208 287
trade receivable tumover ratio 1.99 0.69
| Tradle Payable tamover ratio 3.23 1.38
Met Capital turnover ratio 8.09 5.98
Met profit ratio 0.02 001
[Resturn an capital employed 0,72 0.54

A1C0OIN
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS - 115 'Construction Contracts'
{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
Fortheyear | ... the year ended
it 31 March, 2023
31 March, 2024 b
Amount Amounk

Details of contract revenue
Contract revenue recognised during the year 3B89.79 7773
Angregabe amount of contract cost recognised during the vear 363.98 558.34
Amount received for confracts in progress 3B8.86 358.96
Retention monay for contracts in progress 2,16 28.99
(ross amount due from customers for contract work (asset) 0.92 618.77
Employee benefits obligations

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss
of the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution pavable to the respective
trusts.

The Company provides for earned leave benefit (including compensated absences) to the employees of the company which accrue annually . As per the
rubes af Company, the earned leave is en-cashable during the service and on retirement. The liability for the same Is recognized on the basls of actuarial
valuation,

Gratuity liabllity Is defined benefit obligation and Is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year.

The Company has classfied the various benefits provided to employees as under:
i. Defined contribution plans:

{Amount in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contribution to provigent Fund 5.05 8.34
TOTAL 5.95 8,34

ii. Defined benefit plan:
Gratuity

The Company has & defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity is payable on death whilst in service or withdrawal from senvice due to resignation,
termination or early retirement and on retirement from service at normal retirement age.

The following table sets gut the amounts recognized in the Company's financial statements as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Perica— BI—Harh;?ll“ﬂnn “;‘1:-1;& 3
Discouwnt rate (per annum) 7.06% 7.18%
Rabe of increase in compensation levels {per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of return on assets
Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
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{Amount in Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Gratuity Funded
Changes in Present value of Obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation &t the beginning of the year 18.72 23.96
rent service cost 2.14 3.18
Interast cost 1.21 1.54
rial (Gains)/Loss

Actuarial (gains)f losses arising from changes In demographic assumption 0.00 .00

Actuarial (gains)f losses arising from changes in financial assumption® 0.16 (0.42)

Actuarial (gains)f losses arising from changes in experience adjustment 231 (7.03)
Past service cost - vested benefits 0.00 .00
Benefits pald {3.71) (2.02)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the yeas 20.83 18.72
Fair value of Plan Assets
Fair walue of plan assets gt the beginning of the year 20.53 17.26
Interest income 1.47 1.25
Fietun on plan assats excl, interest income®= (D.20) (0.07)
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) 0.00 .00
Einpuyen s Lonl ibuliune 3.70 4.10
Benefits paid (3.71) (2.01)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 21.80 20.53
Amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss Account
PVO at end of period 20.84 18.73
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 21,81 20.54
Funded status o977 1.B1
MNet assets/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet 097 1.81
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current servioe cost 214 1,18
Intenest cost on benefit obligation {net) (0.26) 0.28
Total expenses recognisad In the statement of profit and laoss 1.87 3.47
Remeasurement Effects Recegnised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Actuarial {gains)/ losses recognised for period 2.47 (7.45)
Actuarial {gains)/ losses arising from changes in financial assumption 0.00 0.00
Actuerial {gains)/ losses arising from changes in experience adjustment 0.00 0.00
Return On plan asset 0.20 0.07
Recognised in other comprahensive inoome 2.67 (7.38)
Maovements in the Liability recognised in Balance Sheet

pening net liability (1.81) 6.20
Adjustment o opening balance 0.00 0.00
Expenses as abowe 1.87 347
Contribution paid {3.70) (4,107
Other comprehensive incorme (OCT) 2.67 (7.38)
Closing net liahility [(0.97) {1.51)




vii.

wiii.

XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Alcon
[

{(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Gratuity Funded

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:
Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Years 6 To 10

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal 2ssumptions
| [

Discount rate (1% movement)

Discount rate (-1% movement)

Salary escalation rate (1% movement)

Salary escalation rate (-1% movement)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds

214
2.09
3.43
1.81
1.75
9.78

19.58
22.26

22,17
19.64

100%:

1.50
1.89
1.84
a0
1.59
B.45

17.56
20.05

19.97
17.62

100%




XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

40 Income Taxes

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss consists of:

Alcon
T RN

(Amount in Lakhs)

i Year ended Year ended
Partpuers 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Current income tax 19.47 9.51
Deferred tax (3.28) 21.53
Tax adjustment related earlier years (20.95) -
Current tax - g
Mat Credit B8.87 :
Income tax expense reported in the statement of pl'-'o'-h': or loss 4.11 31.04
Income tax relating to other comprehensive income (Amount in Lakhs)
——— Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Net {Loss)/Gain on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

(1.04)

Income tax expense cﬁargeﬂ to OCL

(1.04)
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Motes to the hnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

41 Related party disclosures

a) Related party relationship:

il
i

b)

Holding Company
Kalser Corporation Limited

Associates Enterprises
Heat Trace Xicon Ltd.

Enterprises in which key management personnel or their relatives have significant influence
Heat Trace Xicon Ltd.
Oxcamb Investments Limited -Uk

Key management Personnel (KMP)

Hemant K Talapadatur = [Director
Sunil Thite - Director
Lyla Mehita - Director
Notes:

No amounts in respect of related parties have been written offfback during the year,

The relationships as mentioned above pertain to those related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year,

Related party relationships have been determined on the basis of the requirement of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-24 "Related
Party Disclosure” and the same have been identified by the management refied upon by the auditors,

Transactions during the year with related parties:
(Amount in Lakhs)

Sr For the year For the year
* |Particulars ended ended

s 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

(i} |Rent received

Heat Trace Xicon Ltd. 2.40 240
{ii} |Purchase of stock-in-trade

Heat Trace Xicon Ltd. 20.05 2233

Kaiser Corporation Limited 3.26 7.03

(iii} |Consultancy paid to holding company
Kaiser Corporation Limited - 12.00

(iv) |Consultancy paid to director (KMP)
W G Mukund = 9.17

(v} |Loan taken from director { KMP)

|[Hemant K Talapadatur 18.50 36.50
(vi) |Loan repaid to director { KMP) )
|Hemant K Talapadatur 10.00 20,00
(wii) |Expenses incurred on their behalf
lHeat Trace Xicon Lid. 3.62 3.60
Outstanding as on 31st March 2024 {Amount in Lakhs)
Sr. As at As at
PARTICULARS
No. March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(I} |Trade payvables
|Heat Trace Xicon Ltd. - 26.74
(i) |Trade payvables
Kaiser Corporation Limited 0.30 3.0
(il |Investments
Heat Trace Xicon Ltd. 3.54 5.97
(iv] |Others —
W G Mukund = 3R
Th
Sunil Thite ASIRL 0.18 -
Hemant K Talapadatur i 1.76 1.46

e
o i
=

MURBRA J
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Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Impairment of Assets

There was no impairment loss on the fixed assets on the basis of review carried out by the management in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-36 "Impairment of Assats’,

Lease
a) Company as lessee

The Company has entered into short tarm lease for premises under Leave and License agreements. There s no specific obligation
for renewal.

From 01 April 2019, the Indian Accounting Standard i.e. IND-AS 116 "Leases™ became effective, the Company has adopted the
standard with modified retrospective approach as per Para CB (c) (ii) of IND AS 116. However, based on the assessment done by
management, there is no material impact of the such amendment, hence "Right of use asset", (representing its rght of use the
leased asset over the lease term) and also liability towards the present valug of the halance of future lease payments for the
leases has not been recognised.

The cash outflow of lease payments with respect to the above lease recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the financial
year is Rs. NIL (31 March 2023: Rs. MIL).

1#) Cumprany as lessur

The company has given Premises on Leave & License basis which is renewable on mutual basis. The amaount of minimum lease
income with respect to operating lease recognized in the statement of profit and loss for this year is Rs. 2.4 Lakhs (31 March
2024: Rs.2.4 Lakhs).

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
—— March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Met profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss attributable to equity
shareholders (Amount in Lakhs) 52.56 25.80
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for 3 091586 3091586
calculating basic EPS (in nos.) 5L s
Add: weighted average potential equity shares i
Total weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for
calculating diluted EPS S50 91,586
Face value per equity share 10.00 10.00
Basic earnings per share 1.70 0.83
Diluted eamings per share 1.70 0.83
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45 Financial Instruments- Fair values and ik maragement

The: foliowitg able shows the carrying amcent and Tair walues of Minascial esets aod financial kabilties:

Ad at

Carrying Amiust Fair Valwe
31 Bharch 2024
Designated at Fadr Value throwgh
Other finamcial profit and loss wpon instisl Mandptorily at FWICT- Equity Qthar faancal Total
assets- Amortized recogaitions FWTPL imtruments liabdities- m"ﬂ'“ Takal
oet Mandatory Disignated (Dasignaed) R
Fimancial Acsots meakansd 38 Fair value
Irvestment. inoeguity instrumens of other entities = - - - 2.54 - 354 .54
) - - - - FET] - 354 3.54 |
Fimn cial Riiets not messarsd at Falr value
Trade secebrables 1.257.95 - = - - - 1.357.95 1LI57.95
Cash and cash eaukalents L6 = - = - - L26 126
Bank balence cther than cash and cash eouhalents 5,15 = = = - - 56.15 56.15 |
131536 = = - . s 1.315.36 | 131536
Fimanchal Liabilithes pot mesadurad at fair value
Borrowing
Loain S Bark 3nd G, = - - - . L2ds G LIzEEG 1.238.89
Trade savables - - - - - TTAAG FTA8G TTAEG
Cnher Minancial laliites L1 C = & - 36,69 _36.69 35,63
5 - - - - Znag.aa Z.040,44 204049 |
—_—— Epir¥olue |
Other financial |  Designated ot Fair Value through Mandatoaily at FVOCI- Equity | ©ther financial | Total Carrying Total
Ag at assets- Amortized profit and loss wpan initial Fair Value Imstruments liatsilities - A nt
TH Ry 208 eent recognitions through prefit | (Desigrated) | Amortized cost
i
Handatery Deainnated
Financial assels maasured at fai value
Investment s equity instruments of other eatities - . = = 597 . & 9.:
= - - - 507 - A7) [R1]
Fisandal assets nob measuned al fair vale
Traatie medateablis 2065.24 - . . - - L0024 2.086.24
Cagh and Cach eayhalests 1.94 = ! - - - 134 L™
Bank balance ctfer Ran cash and cash equivalents 104.58 . . = 5 . 50458 104,58
217,75 = = x - LATETE 417278
Financial labilbes not messured Al fair vile
ETaing
Lo from Baink - - - : - 140442 102442 103442
Trade parables - - - 1.140.87 134047 LMOAT
Ctheer esarecinl Fabilioe E = ; = 2 1828 7026 7525 |
: : : = - PE N L I C - T N

‘The fair values of the inancal acsete and financial Babiities i incloded ot the amount ab which e instrement could s eschangsd 0 @ cermest tassaction between willing parties, other than i a feced or Bguidation sale.
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2024

47 Financial Risk Management and Palicies
A, Capital Management

The objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the reporting entity's ability to continue as & going concemn, 5o that i can continue to provide returns for
owners and benefits for other stzkeholders, and to provide an adequate return to owners by pricing the sales commensusately with the level of risk. The management
sets the amount of capital to meet its requirements and the risk taken. There were no changes in the approach to capita! managerent during the reparting year, The
managemeant manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it where necessary or possible in the light of changes in conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the management may adjust the amount of dividends paid to owners, return capital b
owners, issue new shares, or sefl assats to reduce debt. The management maonitors the capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is
caloulated as net debt/adjusted capital (25 shown below). Met debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equhvalents, Adjusted capital comprises a
components of equity. The Company’s financial risk management is an Integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies, The risk management policy is
gpproved by the respective entity's Board/Board's Committee. The Company's principa! finzancial labilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and ather payabiles,
The main purpose of these financial lizbilities s to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guaranbess to support its operations in select instances. The
Company’s principal financial assets iIncude |eans, trade and other recetvables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from Its operations and investments.
The comoany Is exnosed to market risk. credit sk . louidity risk ete.

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
All current and non-current barrowings 1,228.89 1,024.42
Trade payablas TT4.86 1, 340.4
COther financial lizbllities 36,69 78.26
Le<s cash and cash equivalents 1.26 1.94
Net debts [A] 2,039.17 2,441.21
Equity share capital 309.16 309.16
Other eguity 553.49 506.02
Total Equity [B] 862.65) 815.18
Capital and Net Debt [ C= A+B] 2,901.83 3,256.39
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio (%) [AfC] 70.27 74.97
. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future eamings, fair values or cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of the financial
Instrument may change &s a result of a change in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other markek changes that affect market risk sensitive
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive finandal instruments induding Investments and deposits, fareign currency receivables, payables and
leans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk |5 the risk that the fair value or future cash News of a finandal instrument will Auctuate because of a change in market interest rates. In order o
optimize the Company's position with regards to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rabe risk, treasury performs a comprehensive
corporate Interest risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its tatal partfolio. The Company has 100% of It
debt in form of fheed rate Instruments and the management of the Company has concluded that the Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the
respective reporting dates,

. Foreign Currency Risk:

Foreign currency risk (foreign currency revenues and expenses-primarily US dollars) is the risk that the falr value or future cash fiows of an exposure will fuctuzte
because of changes In foreign exchange rates. A signficant portion of the Company's revenues are In these forsign currencies, while 2 significant portion of Its costs
are in Indian rupees. As 3 result, if the value of the Indian rupee appreciates relative to these forelgn currendies, the Company’s revenues measured in rupees may
decrease. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially In recent periods and may continue to fluctuate
substantially in the fubure,

The company is exposed te foreign exchangs risk arising from various currency exposures, primarity with respect to US Dollar, Euro Singapore Dollars and Great
Britain Pound,

Foreign currency exposures &s at the year end not hedged are:

Particulars Currency Type As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Amount in Amounts Arnount in Foreign Amounts

Forgign currency {in Lakhs) Cumency (in Lakhs})
Trade receivakie uso 831,279.07 692.80 323,254.07 264,79
Trade receivable Euro - - 162,603.39 163,15
COther financlal assets KWD 2,B10.00 7.60 2,810.00 7.51
Other current assets KWD 2,700.00 7.30 2,700.00 7.22
Trade payable GBP 290.00 0.30 290.00 0.29
Trade payable uso 221,560.00 184,65 154,413,00 126,86
Trade payabile Euro 72,939.00 65.60 72,939.00 65.17
Trade payable*® KAF 1,975.00 0.00 1,875.00 0.00
Trade payabile* AED = - - 6600 0.01
Trade payable* USD S ) *f\%‘;\\ﬁ - . 700. 0.58
Advance from customer usof}’ / \Ag66.00 1.39 1,6 Pl AR
*Trade pavable for the vear ended 31 March 2024 - Rs, 250,55 u o4 Rl ‘i ] E ” n’ :{m _— n?‘l 3& o
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HNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Foreign currency sensitivity:
The following table demonstrates the sencitivity to a 10% increasefdecrease in foreign currencies exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant

Foresgn currency sensitivity analysis (impact on profit before tax)
{Amount in Lakhs)

. As at March 31, 2024 &s at March 31, 2023
Particulars
10% increase 10% decrease 10% increase 10% decrease

Impact on Profit and Loss

Trade receivable 69.28 -69.28 26,48 (26.48)
Trade receivable = - 16,32 (16.32)
COrther financial assets 0.76 -0.76 0.75 (0.75)
Other current assets 0.73 -0, 73 0,72 (0.72)
Trade payable 0.03 -0.03 0.03 (0.03)
Trade payable 18.47 -18.47 12.69 (12.69)
Trade payable 6.56 -6.56 6.52 (6.52)
Trade payable® 0.00 -0.00 0.00 (0.0:0%
Trade payable® - - 0.00 (0.00)
Trade payable® - - 0.06 (0.06)
Advance from customer 0.14 -0.14 0.14 (0.14)
Total 95.96 (95.98) 63.69 (63.69)

* Trade payables for the yvear emded 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 - Rs. 25.06 and Rs. 19,29

. Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resuiting in financial loss to the company. Credit risk
arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, investment in mutual funds, derivative financial instruments, other
balances with banks, loans and other receivables. The outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored and appropriate action is
taken for collection of overdue receivables. Credit risk arising from investment in mutual funds, derivative financial instruments and other
balances with banks is limited and there is no collateral held against these because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by the international credit rating agencies. The carrying amounts of financial assets
represent maximum credit exposure. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counter parbies, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors,

Exposure to credit risk
Financial asset for which boss allowance i measured using expected credit loss model:

{Amount in Lakhs =
Balance as at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Financial year
Investments 3.54 5.97
Trade receivables 1,257.95 2.066.24
Cash and cash equivalents 1.26 1.94
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent 56,15 104 58
At end of the year 1,318.90 2,178.73

Revenue / Trade receivable

Credit risk is the rsk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay according to the contractual terms. Credit rick
encompasses of bath, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks,

The Company needs to strengthen its process and document credit policy for evaluating credit risk, setting and reviewing credit limits
and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted. The management is in the process of
strengthening comprehensive credit risk management palicy for the Company. As a part of this process, the Company has taken
following steps during the year:

&) Authorisation of Credit limits by directors for all significant recelvables

b) Review and enhancement of expected credit loss provision

) Creation of credit risk reserve to provide for unexpected contingencies

The Compamy imits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum payment period of 30 - 90 days for all
custormears . The Company's bulk customers are government parties and have been transacting with them for over significant period of
time.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable at the end of reporting year:
{Amount in Lakhs)

Age of receivables: As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Within the credit pericd 121.24 1,098.09
1-90 daye past due {134.97) 15.33
91-180 days past due (28.33) (156.92)
1B1-360 days past due 395.78 240.21
|More than 360 days past due 431.42 014.17
Total 785.14 1,810.88

The Company has used a practical expedient for computing expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a general
matrix.

Expected Credit Loss {Amount in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at J‘
31 March 24 31 March 23
Mole due - -
Past due by:
0 - 80 Days {1.35) 0.08
21 - 180 days (0.57) (1.57)
181-360 Days 11.87 3.60
Above 360 Days T7.66 55.27
Total B87.61 57.38

Balances with Banks; mutual funds and other financial assets:

For banks only high rated banks/finstitutions are accepted, The Company holds cash and cash equivalents with bank, which are having
highest safety ratings based on ratings published by various credit rating agencies. The Company considers that its cash and cash
equivalents have low credit risk based on external credit ratings of the counterparties,

For other financial assets, the Comparmy assesses and maenages credit risk based om reasonable and supportive forward looking
information. The Company does not have significant credit risk exposure for these items.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening provision 57.38 155.80
Additional provision made / {Reversal) 30.23 (98.52)

Excess provision writien back _
Closing provisions B7.61 57,38

|iad debis written off
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D. Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to sette or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The
Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well settlement managemeant. The Company manages liguidity risk
by maintaining adequate surplus, banking facilities and reserve borrowing fadlities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows.

The working capital position of the Company is given below:
{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Cash and cash equivalents 1.26 1.94
Bank balance other than cash and cash

equivalent 56.16 104,58
Trade and other receivables 1,257.95 2,066.24
Inventory 1,204.78 B45.16
Total 2,520.15 281791

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023,

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars L“;:l;:r:a:ja” 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2024
Mon-derivative financial labilities
Borrowings 1,228.89 - - 1,228.89
Trade payables 774.86 - - 774.86
Other fimandal liabilites 36.69 - - 36.69
2,040.44 - - 2,040.44
As at March 31, 2023
Mon-derivative finandal liabilities
Borrowings 1,024.42 - - 1,024.42
Trade payables 1,340.47 - - 1,340.47
Other fimnancal liabilitias 78.26 - = 78.26
2,443.15 o = 144315
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

48 Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainties

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liablliies and the accompanying disclosures induwding the disclosure of contingent liabilities, The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors, induding
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the dircumstances,
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that perlod, or in the
period of revision and future periods If the revision affects both current and future periods.

Detailed infarmation about each of these estimates, assumptions and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reparting year. The financial effect of this
reassessment, assuming the assets are held until the end of their estimated useful lives, is an increase/decrease the deprediation expense in the
current financial year and future years.,

(ii} Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at falr value for financial reparting purposes, In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company uses
appropriate valuation technigues for valuation. Their fair value is measured using valuation tachnigues including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF)
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
raguired in establishing fair value,

(iii) Estimation of defined benefit obligation:

The cost of defined bensfits plan including other post employment benefits and the present value of such obligations are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities invalved in the
valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All the assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date,

iv) Impairment of nen-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset exceads
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

v) Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for finandal assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company used
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period,

vi} Lease

The Compary determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that Include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. It considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the |lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ahility to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renaw or to terminate.
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Motos to tho financial statemants Tor the year ended 31 March 2074

Additional information to the financial stabements

Disclosures reguired under Section 22 of the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

{Amount in Lakhs)
Particalars A= at 31 March 2024 A5 at 31 March 2023

Amounk Amount
(1} Principal amount remairing unpaid 1o any supplier as at
the end of the acoounting year BTl 5.2

tn}lnumud.:eﬂu-em remaining unpakd to anmy suppler
5 at the end of the accounting year a =

(1§} The amount of interest peid alorg with the amaunts of]
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed - =
day

() The amount of interedt diss ard payable for the year

2.1 0.90
() The amount of interest acorued and remaining unpaid
at the end of the sccounting year 4.59 1.BB
(i) The amaunt of further inberest due and payabie even)
4.89 1.68

s a5 above ane actually paid

[in the succeeding year, until such mmmmmmg]

Note: Due b Micre and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parthes have been identified on the
Ibasis of information collected by the management.

Balances of certain trade receivabikes, tracde pavables and other financial assets are subject to confirmation | reconcilation, If any. The management
dises, not expect any material dfference affecting the fnancal statements on such reconcilistion [ adjustments.

In the opinian of management, trade recelvables, Inans and ather financial &sssts have 3 value on realization in the ordinary course of business at
jeast equal to the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet. The provision for depreciation and all known liabilities & adedquate and not
in expess af the amount reasonably stated,

Code on Social Security, 2020:

The Indian Parlizment has approved the Code on Secial Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Pravident
Furd and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has relsased draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020,
and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which ane under adive consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and fis
evaluafion once the subject rules are notified and will give aporopriate Impact in ks financial stabements in the peried in which, the Code becomes
effective and the related rules o determing the financial impact are published.

Reconcikation bebwesn the apening and closing balances in the balance sheet for Rabiites and fnancial assets arising

Particulars As at Mon-cash change As at
31 March 2023 hoquisition | (Repayment)| 31 March 2024
| Short tenm borrowings 1,024.43 24,47 1,228.89
Particulars As at | HNon-cash change | As at
31 March 2022 Acguisition [ [Repayment) 31 March 2023
|Shart term bormowines 564,38 46004 L0294

Managesment has conducted the physical werification of Inventories s on 2 April 2024 and since there is no receipt & issves during the period 1
April 2024 to 2 April 2024, the invenbories held on 2 April 2024 & having the same value as on 31 March 2024,

Mo subsequent event has been obssrved which may required an adjustment to the statement of finandal position.

Thie company has not done any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 Companies At 2013

The charge on asset that to be registered with ROC has been registersd on time a5 inform by manasgement.

A5 par the management and thase charge with the Governanca has given declaration that the company ks not declaned wilful defaulter by any bank
ar finandal institution or other lender,

Amaunits for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023 were audited by suditors  Shabbic B Rita Assodiates LLP,

Previous years' figures have been regrouped | rearranged, wherever necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.

Signatures to nobe 1 to 60

In terms of our report attached.

For SHABBIR & RITA For and an behalf of the Board of Dirsctars
Xicon International Iil_'!illaeﬂ

sl f

HEMANT K TALAPADATUR SUNIL THITE
Director Cirector
DIN: 02741651 DIM: 10161155

Place : Mumbai



